
AGENDA 

 

Port of Kennewick 

Regular Commission Business Meeting 

Port of Kennewick Commission Chambers 

350 Clover Island Drive, Suite 200, Kennewick, Washington 

 

Tuesday, April 24, 2018 

2:00 p.m. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

III. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 

 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of Direct Deposit and ePayments Dated April 17, 2018 

B. Approval of Warrant Register Dated April 24, 2018 

C. Approval of Regular Commission Business Meeting Minutes April 10, 2018 

 

VI. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Award of  Bid:  Columbia Gardens Loop Road Project; Resolution 2018-05 (LARRY)  

B. Three Year Building Lease with ESD112; Resolution 2018-06 (AMBER) 

C. Oak Street Land Sale to Three Rivers Acquisitions LLC; Resolution 2018-07 (AMBER) 

 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 

A. Bruker AXS Handheld 60 Day Lease Extension; Resolution 2018-08 (LUCY/AMBER)  

 

VIII. REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Land Sales Procedure (TIM) 

B. Vista Field Update (LARRY/TIM) 

1. Pop Up Retail & Programming (TIM) 

C. West Richland Review of Directives (TIM)  

D. Tri-Cities Hispanic Chamber of Commerce - Outstanding Business of the Year award (TANA) 

E. Cancellation of May 8, 2018 Commission Meeting (BRIDGETTE) 

F. Commissioner Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 

G. Non-Scheduled Items 

 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record) 

 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
 

PLEASE SILENCE CELL PHONES 



PORT OF KENNEWICK 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 

    
      

  DRAFT APRIL 10, 2018 MINUTES 

   

Page 1 of 12 

 

CALL TO ORDER  
Commission President Thomas Moak called the Regular Commission Meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. in the 

Port of Kennewick Commission Chambers located at 350 Clover Island Drive, Suite 200, Kennewick, 

Washington 99336. 
 

The following were present: 

 

Board Members: Thomas Moak, President 

Don Barnes, Vice-President   

Skip Novakovich, Secretary   
  

Staff Members: Tim Arntzen, Chief Executive Officer 

 Tana Bader Inglima, Deputy Chief Executive Officer 

 Amber Hanchette, Director of Real Estate and Operations 

 Nick Kooiker, Chief Financial Officer/Auditor 

 Larry Peterson, Director of Planning and Development 

 Lisa Schumacher, Special Projects Coordinator 

 Bridgette Scott, Executive Assistant 

 Lucinda Luke, Port Counsel 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
Commissioner Moak led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE REVISED AGENDA  
MOTION:  Commissioner Novakovich moved to approve the Revised Agenda as presented; 

Commissioner Barnes seconded.  With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in 

favor 3:0. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT  
No comments were made. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA    
A. Approval of Direct Deposit and E-Payments Dated April 3, 2018 

Direct Deposit and E-Payments totaling $119,475.55 

B. Approval of Warrant Registers Dated April 10, 2018 

Expense Fund Voucher Number 100001 through 100037 for a grand total of $128,332.75 

C. Approval of Regular Commission Business Meeting Minutes March 27, 2018 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Novakovich moved for approval of Consent Agenda as presented; 

Commissioner Barnes seconded.  With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in 

favor 3:0.   



PORT OF KENNEWICK   APRIL 10, 2018 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  

 

Page 2 of 12 

 

REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS  
A. Vista Field Update  

1. DPZ Memo 

Mr. Peterson reported at the March 27, 2018 Regular Commission Meeting, DPZ identified 

seven items that should be incorporated into the Vista Field development:  

 Pop-up-retail; 

 Pedestrian Bridge Details; 

 Public Park (Phase 2); 

 Street Names; 

 Landscaping Details; 

 Street/Pathways Details; 

 Central Area Revision to Accommodate Vista Arts Center evolution. 

 

Mr. Peterson outlined details from Ms. Plater-Zyberk’s April 5, 2018 memo from the New 

Orleans work session (Exhibit A).     

 

Mr. Arntzen suggested the Commission discuss each item from Ms. Plater-Zyberk’s memo and 

let staff know your thoughts.  Then, staff can work through each item once we have 

Commission direction and report back at a later date.  Mr. Arntzen stated it is his objective to 

keep the project moving forward for bid and construction beginning this fall.  

 

Pop-up Retail; 

Mr. Peterson stated Phase 1A will include basic infrastructure, such as power and water 

clean-up for food trucks and other vendors, which will be beneficial for future construction.  

DPZ suggested that the pop-up retail should be placed next to the hangars for approximately 

3-5 years.  The temporary pop-up retail will generate vibrancy in Phase 1A and once Phase 

1A is built out, the pop-up retail will move to Phase 2 and the former site becomes a 

building.  The pop-up retail becomes a portable catalyst to create vibrancy for each phase.  

 

Commissioner Novakovich believes including pop-up retail is a great idea and will be a 

reason for the community to come to Vista Field and is what will bring them back.    

 

Commissioner Barnes supports the recommendation by DPZ to include pop-up retail.   

 

Commissioner Moak inquired how staff will need to research pop-up retail and inquired 

what that means.   

 

Mr. Peterson stated staff needs to research the programming of space and find someone 

who can create the vibrancy and activity for the development.  Additionally, staff will need 

to see if the area has enough pop-up retail vendors, not just food trucks, to fill the space.  

 

Commissioner Moak stated it is important to have a variety of vendors, not just food-trucks, 

to appeal to the community.  Commissioner Moak agrees that it is important for the Port to 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   APRIL 10, 2018 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  

 

Page 3 of 12 

find someone who can assist in programming and can utilize social media to drive people 

to the development.     

 

Pedestrian Bridge/Drivable Woonerf and Public Park (Phase 2); 

Mr. Peterson stated DPZ suggested reusing the metal decking from the runway for the 

pedestrian bridge.  Additionally, the crossing over the Woonerf should have a surface 

treatment that emulates wood grain to make it look less like a culvert.  Lastly, DPZ moved 

the main water feature (initially centered off intersection), which is now centered between 

the two intersections and the Vista Arts Center.     

 

Commissioner Novakovich likes the idea of reusing the metal decking on the pedestrian 

bridge and stated it stands out and ties back to the history of Vista Field.  

 

Commissioner Barnes agrees with reusing the metal decking for the pedestrian bridge and   

likes the realignment of the water feature.  However, Commissioner Barnes expressed his 

concern for the potential for creating a habitat for water fowl with the water feature. 

Commissioner Barnes suggested that the pedestrian bridge should be reviewed for potential 

artistic design/elements. 

 

Commissioner Moak likes that the water feature has been re-centered and is now a focal 

point.  Commissioner Moak inquired how much decking the Port has available and how 

much will be utilized throughout the development.   

 

Mr. Peterson estimated that the Port has about 27,000 square feet (1/2 acre) of metal 

decking and about 200 square feet would be used for the pedestrian bridge.   

 

Commissioner Moak prefers not to use an airfield theme for Vista Field and believes the 

Port should continue to look to the future, not the past.  

 

Commissioner Barnes inquired if there will be artwork placed at Vista Field.    

 

Mr. Arntzen believes an additional, smaller water feature will be placed in the plaza area, 

near the pop-up retail; however, staff is working diligently on the budget for the basic 

infrastructure for Phase 1A, and once the roads are in, he will work with Ms. Carter on a 

large art object.    

 

Commissioner Moak referred to the Port’s Art Policy and stated once the Port sells 

properties, we will have the budget for art.    

 

Mr. Arntzen stated the Art Policy stipulates funding from land sales; however, once the bid 

for infrastructure is in, if there are funds remaining, those could go to artwork, prior to land 

sales. 

  

Commissioner Moak inquired if there is a location set aside for a large piece of artwork. 

 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   APRIL 10, 2018 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  

 

Page 4 of 12 

Mr. Arntzen will work with Ms. Bader Inglima and Ms. Carter in regards to potential 

locations, funding, and timing for artwork; however, he has instructed staff to focus on 

infrastructure for Phase 1A.   

 

Mr. Peterson stated there are four locations in Phase 1A for future artwork sites that have 

power, and are not irrigated.   

 

Mr. Arntzen requested to address Street names and Logo at a later date.  

 

Landscaping Details/Street/Pathway Details/Woonerf to the East: 

Mr. Peterson briefed the Commission on suggested roadway landscapes, colors and 

treatments. 

 

Commissioner Moak inquired if the renderings that will be shown at the April 19, 2018 

Special Meeting will show more detail.  

 

Mr. Peterson stated the conceptual renderings will show several areas at different 

perspectives and scales.  Mr. Peterson stated some of the landscaping is removed, so that 

one can see the architectural detail.   

 

Commissioner Moak likes the direction of landscaping details, streets and pathway details 

and the woonerf to the East. 

 

Commissioner Barnes likes the shift in parking and new placement for the woonerf. 

 

Mr. Arntzen stated the Commission will have an opportunity to view the conceptual 

renderings on April 19, 2018 that we have discussed today.  Mr. Arntzen informed the 

Commission that staff has addressed #9, Additional activities in the area when we 

addressed pop-up retail and sighted Mark Blotz from the Clover Island Inn as an example 

of a person who curates activities. 

 

Small Cottages: 

The group toured Ocean Springs, Mississippi as an example of potential residential 

development for Vista Field.   

 

Commissioner Moak stated there is a demand in the market for smaller residences in a 

vibrant area.  

 

Mr. Peterson stated Vista Field is very unique because of the Urban Mixed Use zoning and 

technically the area is considered a commercial district that does not require a large frontage 

areas. 

 

Detailing: 

Mr. Peterson stated Ms. Plater-Zyberk suggested the Port be cost conscious and not require 

builders to add details that do not relate to our regional market.   



PORT OF KENNEWICK   APRIL 10, 2018 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  

 

Page 5 of 12 

 

Commissioner Moak stated the Collaborative Design Process will allow staff to work with 

the developers and compromise on certain elements. 

 

Mr. Arntzen stated the challenge will be finding a happy medium with the 

developers/builders, the homeowners and the architects.  Mr. Arntzen indicated that Mr. 

Mehaffy is working on a report that the Port can distribute to builders which define the 

details and elements for Vista Field.   

 

Mr. Peterson stated the report is a shortened version of the Master Plan and the key elements 

will be broken down and expectations will be clearly defined. 

 

Mr. Arntzen appreciates the Commission discussion and has enough direction to continue 

moving forward.  Logo and street names will be placed on a future agenda for Commission 

discussion.    

 

2. Consideration of a Project Labor Agreement 

Mr. Arntzen reported that he was recently contacted by a local union representative who asked 

if the Port would consider entering into a Project Labor Agreement (PLA) for the Vista Field 

construction.    The current Port policy and practice is to follow the Washington State Prevailing 

Wage Act.  A PLA is an agreement entered into by the municipality and the union, which states 

the municipality would bid a project according to union rules.  Mr. Arntzen outlined the pros 

and cons of a PLA in a memo which is attached as Exhibit B. 

  

Ms. Luke stated Mr. Arntzen’s memo and comments were very balanced and on point.  Ms. 

Luke reported that she has experience negotiating Collective Bargaining Agreements (CBA), 

which are similar to PLA’s, but with a defined project.   

 

Commissioner Novakovich inquired if the Port were to enter into a PLA, what would the delay 

cost the Port.    

 

Mr. Kooiker stated it is hard to quantify; however, at this time the Port is currently paying 

Parametrix approximately $15,000 a month in construction design fees and would request 

halting the design until the PLA is negotiated.  

 

Mr. Arntzen stated the Port would need to halt the design work, because we would ultimately 

be backtracking and there could be potential changes to the plan.  

 

Commissioner Barnes stated if the Port were to elect to enter into a PLA, he inquired how long 

the negotiation process, and draft and review of the PLA would take. 

 

Ms. Luke stated in her experience with CBA’s, negotiations can vary substantially depending 

on the parties and how easily they come together.  CBA’s can take anywhere from 3 to 6 

months to 3 years. 

 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   APRIL 10, 2018 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  

 

Page 6 of 12 

And while Commissioner Moak stated this is a PLA, not a CBA, Ms. Luke stated some of the 

components are the same. 

 

Commissioner Moak opened the floor for public comment and asked the public to alternate 

between pro and con views when speaking about the Port entering into a PLA with the union 

for construction at Vista Field. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Cal Coie, 705 South Oklahoma Street, Kennewick.  Mr. Coie worked in the construction industry for 50 

years, both union and non-union.  The Port already pays the prevailing wage and when you enter into a 

union negotiation, you will cut out a lot of contractors in the Tri-Cities.  Mr. Coie believes the project will 

cost more money in the long run if you enter into a PLA and when a municipality pays prevailing wage, 

the contractor pays the sub-contractors and signs the Affidavit of Wages Paid.  Mr. Coie believes it is 

foolish for the Port to consider entering into a PLA.  

 

Steven Wiley, 3172 Willow Point Drive, Richland.  Mr. Wiley, representative for the Art Center Task 

Force (ACTF), stated they have been carefully estimating the cost to construct the Vista Arts Center 

(VAC).  Unlike a lot of public projects, the funds for the VAC will be raised from the private support 

system.  The ACTF has been working with LMN Architecture on each line item, including labor.  It was 

concluded that if the ACTF utilized union labor for the construction of the VAC, the project would cost 

beyond what could be raised and essentially kill the project.  Mr. Wiley is sympathetic to union wages, 

but the ACTF is building something for the public and will not make a profit or receive funding from 

taxes.  Most of the people on the ACTF are volunteers and to make the VAC viable, we will utilize   

volunteer labor, and to impose this kind of requirement on our project would effectively kill the project.  

Mr. Wiley strongly urges the Commission not to impose such a requirement on projects built within the 

Vista Field development. 

 

John Swope, 1201 South Roosevelt Street, Kennewick.  Mr. Swope has managed several major industrial 

projects since 2000, both union and non-union and has had excellent and poor results from both.  Mr. 

Swope stated the Commission needs to set aside the question of union and non-union and put the emphasis 

on the evaluation of the contractor. 

 

Boyce Burdick, 414 Snyder Street, Richland.  Mr. Burdick questions the timing of this and stated the Port 

needs more time to consider a PLA and it would be more practical at later phases, not Phase 1, especially 

if it will set bidding and construction back.  Mr. Burdick believes it is crucial for the public to see 

construction at Vista Field and the project moving forward.  

 

David Robison, 3601 North 20th Avenue, Pasco.  Mr. Robison has worked over 35 years in construction 

in California and Washington and has had experience with PLA’s.  Mr. Robison does not believe this is a 

pro or con conversation, but a conversation about what is right for Vista Field.  Mr. Robison stated a PLA 

is not the place Vista Field, which has been engineered to the publics’ specific requirements.  The “Save 

the Date” flyer for the April 19, 2018 Special Commission Meeting depicts what the Port envisions for 

Vista Field; the structures, the residences and the businesses that the public asked for.  Vista Field is a 

place where the community can gather, walk, work, and live, and nothing about the community is complex. 

Mr. Robison stated PLA’s represent complex projects and engage multiple agencies, and are generally 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   APRIL 10, 2018 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  

 

Page 7 of 12 

related to bridges and highways.  The community, the Commission, and staff did not engineer a project 

specific to a PLA.  To integrate a PLA at Vista Field would encumber the entitlement of this project and 

preclude the very community their abilities to develop the very project you promised them.  A PLA would 

not enhance your outcome of Vista Field in accordance to the vision of this community.  Additionally, the 

Commission would need to integrate the PLA into the current documents and specifications, which would 

mean the Commission would not go out for bid in the next few months.  To integrate a PLA into the 

construction documents would require legal counsel and the expertise of architecture/engineering firms 

who have the ability to avoid conflict between the documents.  The delay could take anywhere from 6-12 

months and that kind of integration would be at the expense of the public.  Mr. Robison does not see the 

benefit of implementing a PLA for Vista Field, because it was not engineered to consider a PLA.  

 

No Further Comments. 

 

Commissioner Novakovich is concerned about the timing of this request and stated the Port has been 

transparent throughout this process.  In the five years the Commission has been discussing the 

redevelopment at Vista Field, the union has never brought up a PLA.  Mr. Novakovich believes a PLA 

would create exclusivity, eliminate bidders, and increase the cost of redevelopment. 

 

Motion:  Commissioner Novakovich moved to adopt the current, long standing, Port of Kennewick 

policy of Customs and Practice in bidding all Port-bid Vista Field area development construction 

contracts, including, but not limited to, infrastructure and buildings, according to Washington State 

Prevailing Wage Law; Commissioner Barnes seconded. 

 

Discussion:  

Commissioner Barnes stated the Port has a policy in place which states that our projects are 

designed, specified, bid and constructed, under the Prevailing Wage Law.  If the Commission does 

not take any action on the PLA, the Port policy remains in place.   

 

Commissioner Novakovich stated that is correct; however, if this topic were to come up again, the 

motion puts an end to any PLA discussion.  Commissioner Novakovich would like to have a motion 

that states the Port will maintain the policy for Vista Field.  

 

Commissioner Moak wishes the proponents of the PLA were here today, to express their views and 

respond to comments and concerns of staff and the public.  Commissioner Moak stated there are 

concerns but he does not agree with some of the objections that were raised.  Commissioner Moak 

would like to understand PLA’s a little better and believes there could be some benefits to a PLA.  

Commissioner Moak stated the union is not here to voice the benefits and he is not an expert and 

cannot speak to the public’s concern.  Commissioner Moak stated there is legitimate concern and 

a variety of different items that could delay Vista Field.  Commissioner Moak cannot support 

moving ahead with a PLA when a union representative is not present to speak on the topic and 

how the union would advance the Port’s vision.  Commissioner Moak cannot advance the PLA; 

however, he cannot support the motion and does not agree with the position, and agrees with 

Commissioner Barnes, the Port already has a policy in place and no action is necessary.  

 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   APRIL 10, 2018 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  

 

Page 8 of 12 

Commissioner Novakovich believes the motion is essential, so that a PLA does not come up again 

and encumber the public with additional costs, whether those costs are for the design team, staff 

time or additional attorney costs.  Commissioner Novakovich believes it is important to put the 

topic to rest.     

 

Commissioner Barnes stated with respect to Commissioner Novakovich’s comments, it only takes 

a new Commissioner for the motion to be rescinded, and cited the history of the Executive Office 

of the President of the U.S.  Commissioner Barnes stated there are many debatable categories 

surrounding a PLA, but he does not believe a PLA is right for Vista Field, which has been used for 

complex projects, such as the Port of Pasco Airport remodel.  The Port has had a long history of 

successful projects, designed and constructed under the Prevailing Wage Act/Policy.  Additionally, 

the Port has been working on Vista Field for five years and the union has not come forward until 

now.  Commissioner Barnes could not support a PLA for Vista Field and does not believe it is the 

right project for a PLA.    

 

With no further discussion, motion does not pass.  All in favor 1:2 (Novakovich; Barnes & Moak). 
  

Mr. Arntzen asked for a point of clarification and stated going forward, he will approach Vista Field as a 

prevailing wage project and when negotiating with the ACTF for the VAC, there will not be a deed 

stipulation.  Furthermore, the prevailing wage policy will apply to all residential and commercial land 

sales. 

 

Commissioner Moak stated nothing has changed, the prevailing wage policy stands. 

 

Commissioner Barnes stated all Port projects are subject to prevailing wage. 

 

Mr. Arntzen stated the union may request a PLA again and he wanted to verify with the Commission that 

any project related to Vista Field will fall under the Port’s prevailing wage policy, with no stipulations on 

deed transfers of property.  

 

Commissioner Barnes stated that is correct.  Commissioner Barnes verified with Ms. Luke that the policy 

states the Port follows the Washington State Prevailing Wage Law. 

 

Ms. Luke stated that is correct. 

 

Commissioner Barnes stated to deviate from our policy the Port would need to take action on an existing 

policy.  Commissioner Barnes confirmed that Mr. Arntzen does not have authority to negotiate an 

agreement, because it would be inconsistent with Port policy. 

 

Ms. Luke stated that is correct; however, if Mr. Arntzen is approached by the union again, it would be 

incumbent upon him to inform the Commission.   

 

Commissioner Barnes would like the opportunity to further research and discuss at a later date. 

 

 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   APRIL 10, 2018 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  

 

Page 9 of 12 

RECESS 
Commissioner Moak recessed the meeting at 3:56 p.m. for nine minutes and will reconvene at 

approximately 4:05 p.m. 

 

Commissioner Moak Reconvened the meeting at 4:05 p.m. 

 

REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS (continued) 
A. Oak Street Land Sale Proposal 

Ms. Hanchette stated the Port has received an offer on property in the Oak Street Industrial Park 

which has been in the Port’s portfolio since 1972.  The vacant property is 12 acres, within the City 

of Kennewick limits, and is subject to City codes and zoned for light industrial.  Ms. Hanchette 

stated the asking price is $400,000, which is based on the appraisal that was completed in 2017.  

Ms. Hanchette does not believe there have been any offers on the property; however, last year there 

was an interested business, but they found a more suitable Port property.  Ms. Hanchette stated 

there are many challenges with the property, such as: it sits on a flood plain, was previously leased 

to a local contractor who dumped construction debris on the site, and there is no road leading to 

the 12 acres.  Ms. Hanchette stated the offer came through a local real estate firm, on behalf of a 

small entrepreneurial firm with two principals.  The proposal is to develop the 12 acres into an 

industrial business park and install infrastructure and extend utilities, prior to developing the 

property.  Ms. Hanchette reported that the firm has interested parties and at full build out, the park 

may create up to $15,000,000 in annual sales and approximately 66 jobs created.  The Port’s 

Standard Purchase and Sale Agreement allows for the following: a 90 day feasibility period, a 

repurchase option if the buyer does not start construction within 18 months, 5% refundable earnest 

money deposit, and a $500 non-refundable administration fee.  The firm is asking for a 12 month 

feasibility period because of the challenges to the property and further marketing purposes.  Ms. 

Hanchette stated the Port needs to dispose of some Russian Olive trees, but the property is being 

sold “as is.”  

 

Commissioner Barnes confirmed that the offer is requesting a 12 month feasibility period versus 

the Port’s standard 90 day feasibility period.   

 

Ms. Hanchette stated that is correct; however, the Port has extended the feasibility period 

previously.   

 

Commissioner Novakovich confirmed the appraised price is $400,000.   

 

Commissioner Moak does not see an issue with allowing a 12 month feasibility period.   

 

Commissioner Barnes inquired what the cost is for the Port to hold this property.   

 

Mr. Kooiker stated the cost of irrigation is about $5,000 per year. 

 

Ms. Hanchette stated the Port worked with the City to remove the trees because of a homeless 

encampment, which created extra costs in 2017. 

 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   APRIL 10, 2018 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  

 

Page 10 of 12 

Commissioner Barnes confirmed that this offer would be addressed in Executive Session. 

 

Ms. Hanchette stated that is correct.  

 

B. City of West Richland 

Mr. Arntzen reported that Ms. Bader Inglima is currently working on an article regarding the City 

of West Richland for the Port’s newsletter, which addresses the past, present, and future projects.  

Additionally, Mr. Arntzen met with Mayor Gerry regarding a joint meeting between the Port 

Commission and City Council.  Mr. Arntzen stated Mayor Gerry believes it would be more 

productive to continue working administrator to administrator.  Mr. Arntzen is currently 

completing a memo regarding the recent input from Mayor Gerry about funding the infrastructure 

to the boundary of the racetrack.   

 

C. Opportunity Fund 

a. List of Potential Projects 

Mr. Arntzen stated the Port allocates an opportunity fund in the budget for projects that may 

be significant, but arise after the work plan and budget.  Currently, the Port has $100,000 

allocated for the 2017-2018 Budget and here are a few items for consideration:   

 Duffy’s Pond: Environmental Proposal; $25,000; 

 JF Engineering Contract: $12,000 for research on all community bids to narrow down 

construction costs for Vista Field;   

 Makers Architecture; $7,000 for the Clover Island Master Plan Refresh; 

 ECONorthwest: $9,000 for an Economic Feasabilty Report for Clover Island with the 

1135 investment. 

 

Commissioner Novakovich inquired if the Duffy’s Pond was for planning only. 

 

Mr. Arntzen stated the proposal will include a report and course of action for Duffy’s Pond, 

but not the actual clean-up work.  

 

Commissioner Novakovich stated all of the suggestions are beneficial to the Port and should 

be completed.    

 

Commissioner Moak asked how the JF Engineering contract will add value. 

 

Mr. Arntzen stated previously the Port has utilized an engineering estimate software to run the 

numbers for a construction project and found the estimate to be too low.  Mr. Arntzen believes 

Mr. Fetterolf will be able to meticulously vet the numbers for Vista Field.   

 

Mr. Peterson stated the contract includes gathering data from all local municipalities on 

projects over the last 3 years that pay prevailing wage and deal with unit pricing, in an effort 

to break down the actual costs versus using the estimating software.    

 

D. Commissioner Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals) 

Commissioners reported on their respective committee meetings. 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   APRIL 10, 2018 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  

 

Page 11 of 12 

 

E. Non Scheduled Items 

1. Commissioner Novakovich gave a Washington Public Ports Association Legislative update: 

 The basic CERB program was increased to $13,000,000 and the CERB broadband program 

was increased to $10,000,000; 

 Port Broadband Authority (HB2664) advanced through the legislative process and was sent 

to the Governor’s office for signature; 

 Tourism Promotion (SB5251) was signed by the Governor and creates and funds a state 

tourism program by establishing a tourism board, and directing 0.2% of the sales tax on 

lodging, rental cars, and restaurants.  The state funding portion is limited to $2,500,000 per 

year; 

 Campaign Contribution Limits (HB 2647) died on the Senate floor calendar and will be 

addressed next session;    

 Public Works Contracting Authority (SB 6329) clarifies the port’s authority to use unit-

price contracting as well as establishes a bid limit so ports are no longer required to get 

multiple bids for public works projects less than $40,000. 
 

2. Ms. Bader Inglima reminded the audience of the Special Commission Meeting on April 19, 

2018; Vista Field, Infrastructure Unveiling of Phase 1 Plan and Renderings.  The meeting will 

take place at the Bechtel Boardroom at the Tri-Cities Business and Visitor Center at 6:00 p.m..  

Ms. Bader Inglima asked that the Commission arrive close to the starting time, so as not to 

engage with the public.  

 

The Latino Heritage Mural Celebration will take place at Columbia Gardens on May 23, 2018 

at 2:00 p.m..  

 

F. Columbia Drive  

a. Columbia Gardens Way- Bid Update 

Mr. Peterson reported that construction plans for Columbia Gardens Phase 2A are complete 

and were advertised on April 1, and 8, 2018 and bid results are due on April 19, 2018 at 2:00 

p.m.  Mr. Peterson stated the bid package includes: the loop road (Date Street and Cedar Street 

Extensions and Columbia Gardens Way), trail access, landscaping and wall along Columbia 

Drive, the gateway approach, 30 parking spaces, 6 food truck spaces and plaza, and utilities 

and one alternative is included for a 300 foot screening wall adjacent to the mobile home park.    

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Boyce Burdick, 414 Snyder Street, Richland.  Mr. Burdick stated the new location for parking near the 

UPS facility for the Vista Arts Center is perfect for the performers and believes the parking plan is a step 

in the right direction. 

 

No further comments were made.  

 

PRESENTATION 
A. Anti-Harassment Training; (Exhibit C) 

 



PORT OF KENNEWICK   APRIL 10, 2018 MINUTES 

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING 
    DRAFT  

 

Page 12 of 12 

COMMISSIONER COMMENTS  
No comments were made. 

 

Commissioner Moak anticipates the Executive Session will last approximately 10 minutes, Minimum 

Price, per RCW 42.30.110(1)(c) with action anticipated.  Commissioner Moak asked the public to notify 

Port staff if they will return after the executive session so staff can advise if the session concludes early.   

 

Commissioner Moak recessed the Regular Commission Meeting at 5:03 p.m.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION   

A. Minimum Price, per RCW 42.30.110(1)(c)   

 

Commissioner Moak convened the meeting into Executive Session at 5:03 p.m. for approximately 10 

minutes. 

 

Commissioner Moak adjourned the Executive Session at 5:10 p.m. with anticipated action. 

 

Commissioner Moak reconvened the Regular Commission Meeting at 5:11 p.m.  

 

Motion: Commissioner Novakovich moved to set a minimum price on the Oak Street property of 

$375,000, and instruct staff to establish a Purchase and Sale Agreement for Commission approval; 

Commissioner Moak seconded.  With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously.  All in favor 

3:0.   

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no further business to bring before the Board; the meeting was adjourned 5:12 p.m.  

 

 

APPROVED: PORT of KENNEWICK 

BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

  

      

Thomas Moak, President 
 

       

Don Barnes, Vice President 

 

 
 

      

 Skip Novakovich, Secretary 

 



  

 

          AGENDA REPORT  
 

 

 

TO:  Port Commission 

  

FROM:    Larry Peterson, Director of Planning & Development  

 

MEETING DATE:    April 24, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution No. 2018-05; Construction Contract with Big D’s 

Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc.  

________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

I. REFERENCE(S):  Resolution 2016-05; Bid Tabulation; Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation  

 

II. FISCAL IMPACT:  $723,098.60, plus applicable tax 

 

III. DISCUSSION:  The Port’s commitment to the revitalization of Columbia Drive was officially 

established by the 2013 Port & City Interlocal Agreement and reaffirmed by the 2015 Interlocal 

Agreement.  Completion of the Columbia Gardens Wine Village buildings in fall 2017 signified 

conclusion of the initial Port and City actions.   

 

The Port completed design of a loop roadway, parking lot, food truck area and plaza to both 

support the Phase #1 buildings but to also up the remaining site for private sector investment and 

Port planned Phase 2 building construction.  Hall Engineers & Associates prepared plans and 

specifications and then the Port properly advertised this project for bid and received five (5) bids 

before the 2:00 p.m. April 19, 2018 deadline.  Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc. base bid of 

$673,218.60 was the lowest of five [5] bids received for this project and has been deemed as a 

responsive bid.  Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc. provided a bid price of $49,880.00 for 

Alternative #1 (6-ft. masonry). 

 

Bid documents specified the Port would award to the contractor with the lowest responsive base 

bid which was submitted by Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc.  Inclusion and/or of 

alternates would be determined based on the remaining available budget.  Accepting the bid for 

of the Base Bid work and Alternative 1 along with the applicable sales tax would be within the 

allocated budget. 

 

Review and acceptance of this bid by the Commission is required prior to proceeding with this 

project.  The motion included in this report and the attached resolution would effectively 

authorize this project.  

 

IV. ACTION REQUESTED OF COMMISSION:   

Motion: I move approval of Resolution 2018-05, authorizing the Port’s Chief 

Executive Officer to execute the contract with Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, 

Inc. for construction of the Columbia Gardens Loop Roadway project on 

Columbia Drive including Alternative 1, for the sum of $723,098.60, plus 

applicable tax. 



 

PORT OF KENNEWICK 

Resolution No. 2018-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK 

ACCEPTING AND AWARDING THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE COLUMBIA 

GARDENS LOOP ROADWAY PROJECT ON COLUMBIA DRIVE 

 
 WHEREAS, a request for bids for the Columbia Gardens Loop Roadway Project was properly advertised 

with the approved plans and specifications being made available to prospective bidders; and 

  

WHEREAS, construction bids have been received and staff and the project engineer have certified that the 

bids received are in compliance with the plans and specifications; and 

 

WHEREAS, the staff and the project engineer have certified that the low bidder for the project is Big D’s 

Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc. in the amount of $673,218.60, plus applicable tax, for the base bid work which 

includes the installation Columbia Garden Way roadway and vehicle parking areas for 30+ vehicles on Columbia 

Drive, and that such bid is in compliance with the plans and specifications; and 

 

WHEREAS, the staff and the project engineer have certified that the low bidder also provided a bid in the 

amount of $49,880.00, plus applicable tax, for Bid Alternative #1 work which includes the construction of a 6’ 

masonry wall adjacent northwest portion of site, and that such bid is in compliance with the plans and 

specifications; and 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Port of Kennewick Commission does hereby accept 

the base bid of Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc. for the Columbia Gardens Loop Roadway project on 

Columbia Drive as the low bidder in the amount of $673,218.60, and hereby awards the construction contract to 

said low bidder. 

 

BE IT HEREBY FURTHER RESOLVED that the Port of Kennewick Commission does hereby accept 

the Bid Alternative #1 of Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc. for the construction of a 6’ masonry wall adjacent 

northwest portion of site in the amount of $49,880.00 plus applicable tax, and hereby increases the construction 

with said low bidder to include this work. 

  

BE IT HEREBY FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chief Executive Officer is authorized to enter into a 

contract between the Port of Kennewick and Big D’s Construction of Tri-Cities, Inc. for a contract total of 

$723,098.60 plus applicable tax, and that the Chief Executive Officer is further authorized to proceed with all 

necessary procedures required to complete construction of the project. 

  
ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kennewick on the 24th day of April 2018.  

 

PORT of KENNEWICK 

 BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

 

      By:  _______________________________ 

       THOMAS MOAK, President  

        

     By: _______________________________ 

       DON BARNES, Vice President 

 

      By: _______________________________ 

       SKIP NOVAKOVICH, Secretary 



FIN
A

L B
ID

 TA
B

Port of K
ennew

ick - C
olum

bia G
ardens Loop R

oad
B

id O
pening 2:00pm

 Thursday A
pril 19, 2018 at 350 C

lover Island D
rive, Suite 200

Port C
om

m
ission m

ust approve contract of this scale
A

pril 20, 2018 @
 1:00pm

C
ontact: Larry P

eterson (509) 586-1188

lpeterson@
portofkennew

ick

G
EN

ER
A

L C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

C
ITY

STA
TE

B
ase B

id 
(Schedule A

    
Tax-Exem

pt)

B
ase B

id 
(Schedule B

     
Taxable)

TO
TA

L        
B

A
SE B

ID
 

Schedules     
A

 &
 B

A
lternative #1

TO
TA

L          
B

A
SE B

ID
     

Schedules       
A

 &
 B

 and 
A

lternative #1

B
ig D

's C
onstruction O

F Tri-C
ities

Pasco
W
A

$324,192.10
$349,026.50

$673,218.60
$49,880.00

$723,098.60

Inland A
shalt C

om
pany

Richland
W
A

$408,093.25
$335,366.13

$743,459.38
$52,000.00

$795,459.38

G
oodm

an &
 M

ehlenbacher
Kennew

ick
W
A

$368,703.52
$376,569.88

$745,273.40
$91,754.00

$837,027.40

2F Enterprises
Kennew

ick
W
A

$377,439.15
$379,508.85

$756,948.00
$53,500.00

$810,448.00

M
oreno &

 N
elson C

onstruction
W
alla W

alla
W
A

$421,968.00
$410,281.42

$832,249.42
$175,000.00

$1,007,249.42

Award 
based upon 

this column



From: Gary Hall [mailto:halleng@owt.com]  
Sent: Friday, April 20, 2018 2:10 PM 
To: Larry Peterson <LPeterson@portofkennewick.org> 
Subject: RE: Columbia Gardens Loop Roadway‐Bids, Bid Tab spreadsheet & Final Bid Tab 
(Recommendation letter Sought) 
 
 
Larry –  
 
I have checked the math on the bids, and if the bids were closer, this would be a complicated award, 
requiring several bidders to acknowledge and accept corrections to their bids according to the contract 
documents. 
 
Fortunately Big D’s is the lowest responsive bidder and has no errors. 
 
I recommend award of the bid/contract for Columbia Gardens Loop Road (Phase 2.A) to Big D’s 
Construction of Tri‐Cities. 
 
 
 
Thank you,  
Gary Hall, PE 
Hall Engineering Associates 
10 South Auburn St 
Kennewick WA  99336 
(509) 582‐2200 
halleng@owt.com 
 



AGENDA REPORT 

TO: Port Commission 

FROM: Amber Hanchette, Director of Operations & Real Estate 

MEETING DATE: April 24, 2018 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 2018-06; to approve a 3-Year Lease at 104 Clover 
Island Drive - ESD112 Construction Services Group 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

I. REFERENCE(S): Resolution 2018-06 and Lease Agreement

II. FISCAL IMPACT: Operational income of$217,525.10 for a thirty-six month lease period
(less 2 weeks) including leasehold tax.

III. DISCUSSION: Construction Services Group (CSG) is a program of the Washington State 
Educational Services District 112. The Educational Services District was created in 1969 by the 
Washington State Legislature to support districts in a variety of program areas. The leased area 
will be used as administrative offices. CSG will occupy the entire 2nd floor at 104 Clover Island 
Drive, Kennewick.

Parameters of the negotiated lease are:

• Lease 5,270 square feet for office space on 2nd floor at 104 Clover Island Drive the West 
Marina Professional Building; 

Three (3) year lease effective May 15, 2018; 

Subject to first right of refusal to lease space by the Clover Island Yacht Club; 

Lessee is responsible for separately metered utilities including electricity; excluding water, 
common area landscape, garbage and parking; 

Year 1 monthly rent for the premises is $5,270.00 plus leasehold tax; 

3 % per year rent escalation; 

According to Port of Kennewick Policies and Procedures, POK-ED-001, 3.l.2(b). Leases in 
which the monthly rental amount exceeds $5,000 per month shall be submitted to the 
Commission for approval. 

IV. STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the three (3) year lease as negotiated, effective May 15, 2018.



V. ACTION REQUESTED OF COMMISSION:

Motion: I move approval of Resolution 2018-06 approving a three (3) year 

lease with ESDJ 12 Construction Services Group and authorizing the Chief 

Executive Officer to execute the contract.



PORT OF KENNEWICK 

Resolution No. 2018-06 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK APPROVING 
A THREE YEAR LEASE AGREEMENT WITH 
ESD112 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES GROUP 

WHEREAS, the Port of Kennewick (Port) is authorized to enter into certain leases upon 
such terms as the Port Commission deems proper; and 

WHEREAS, a three (3) year lease with ESDl 12 Construction Services Group effective 
May 15, 2018 has been negotiated by Port staff subject to first right of refusal lease with the Clover 
Island Yacht Club; and 

WHEREAS, the Port Commission has called a regularly scheduled public meeting with 
notice of such meeting given as provided by law and such public meeting was held at such time 
and on said date; and 

WHEREAS, Port staff and the Port attorney have reviewed the proposed Lease Agreement 
and find it is in proper form and it is in the Port's best interest; and 

WHEREAS, after consideration of the attached lease agreement, the Port Commission has 
determined that the lease is proper. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners 
of the Port of Kennewick hereby approve a three (3) year lease with ESDl 12 Construction Services 
Group as presented and authorizes the Port's Chief Executive Officer to execute all documents 
and agreements on behalf of the Port to complete the transaction as specified above. 

ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kennewick on the 24th day of 
April, 2018. 

By: 

By: 

By: 

PORT of KENNEWICK 
BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

THOMAS MOAK, President 

DON BARNES, Vice President 

SKIP NOVAKOVICH, Secretary 













































  

          AGENDA REPORT  
 

 

 

 

TO:      Port Commission 

  

FROM:    Amber Hanchette, Director of Real Estate & Operations  

 

MEETING DATE:    April 24, 2018  

 

AGENDA ITEM:  Oak Street Industrial Park Land Sale – Three Rivers 

Acquisitions 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

I. REFERENCE(S):  Resolution 2018-07 and Site Map; attached. 

 

II. FISCAL IMPACT:  $375,000 revenue to the Port. 

 

II. DISCUSSION:  An offer to purchase approximately 12.33 acres ($30,414 per acre) of 

port-owned vacant land in the Oak Street Industrial Park (Kennewick) has been 

submitted by Three Rivers Acquisitions LLC. 

 

 Property has been in the Port’s real estate portfolio since 1972 generating little to no 

revenue. 

 The property is located at Oak Street and 7th Avenue with no improvements on the property. 

 Property is located in a flood plain and near the City of Kennewick’s sewer treatment plant.  

 Property has been used over the years as a construction debris stockpile.  

 Zoned Light Industrial 

Terms:  

 Purchaser takes property in “As Is” condition 

 Purchaser requests 12 month feasibility period 

 30 day close after feasibility expiration 

 5% earnest month deposit 

 

The Purchaser intends to create an industrial business park for warehousing, 

manufacturing, logistics/delivery and construction-related trades. The Purchaser projects 

annual business park sales in excess of $15 million at full build out with over 60 family 

wage jobs created.  Principal owners have background in construction, development and 

finance.  

 

VI. ACTION REQUESTED OF COMMISSION:   

Motion: I move approval of Resolution 2018-07 authorizing the Port’s Chief 

Executive Officer to execute all necessary documentation associated with the 

land sale to Three Rivers Acquisitions and to take all other action necessary 

to close this transaction. 

 



PORT OF KENNEWICK 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-07 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF 

KENNEWICK AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT WITH  

THREE RIVERS ACQUISITIONS LLC 

 

 WHEREAS, Three Rivers Acquisitions LLC  (Purchaser), has offered to purchase 

approximately 12.33 acres of the area graphically depicted on “Exhibit A” at the Port of 

Kennewick’s Oak Street Industrial Park, in Kennewick, Washington from the Port of Kennewick 

(Seller) for $375,000 or approximately $30,414 per acre; and  

 

WHEREAS, Port staff and the Port attorney have reviewed the proposed Purchase and Sale 

Agreement and find it is in proper form and is in the Port’s best interest; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Port Commission finds that said property is surplus to the Port’s needs 

and the proposed sale is consistent with all previous Port policies, including its Comprehensive 

Scheme of Development. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE; BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners 

of the Port of Kennewick hereby authorizes the Port’s Chief Executive Officer to execute a 

Purchase and Sale Agreement with Three Rivers Acquisitions LLC and hereby authorizes the 

Port’s Chief Executive Officer to execute all documents and agreements on behalf of the Port to 

complete the transaction as specified above.  

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Port Commission declares that said property is 

surplus to the Port’s needs and the proposed sale as referenced above is consistent with all previous 

Port policies, including its Comprehensive Scheme of Development.  

 

 ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kennewick on the 24th day of 

April, 2018.  

 

PORT of KENNEWICK 

 BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

 

      By:  _______________________________ 

       THOMAS MOAK, President  

        

     By: _______________________________ 

       DON BARNES, Vice President 

 

      By: _______________________________ 

       SKIP NOVAKOVICH, Secretary 

 



  

EXHIBIT “A” 

 

 

 



PORT OF KENNEWICK 

 

Resolution No. 2018-08 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

OF THE PORT OF KENNEWICK AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

TO EXECUTE AN AMENDMENT TO THE COMMERCIAL LEASE AGREEMENT WITH  

BRUKER AXS HANDHELD INC. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Port of Kennewick (Port) is authorized to enter into certain leases upon such 

terms as the Port Commission deems proper; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the current lease dated January 1, 2013 with Bruker AXS Handheld Inc. expires 

December 31, 2017; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Commission approved Resolution 2017-33 granting a sixty day (60) lease 

extension expiring on March 1, 2018 and approved Resolution 2018-03 granting an additional sixty day 

(60) extension expiring April 30, 2018; and  

 

WHEREAS, port staff requests Commission approval for an additional sixty day (60) lease 

extension expiring on June 30, 2018 to complete lease renewal negotiations with Bruker AXS Handheld 

Inc.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the 

Port of Kennewick hereby approves a sixty day (60) lease extension and authorizes the Chief Executive 

Officer to execute an amendment to the Commercial Lease Agreement with Bruker AXS Handheld Inc.  

 

 ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kennewick on the 24th day of April 

2018. 

 

PORT of KENNEWICK 

 BOARD of COMMISSIONERS 

 

By:   

 _______________________________ 

 THOMAS MOAK, President 

 

  By:  

  _______________________________ 

  DON BARNES, Vice President 

 

  By:    

_______________________________ 

SKIP NOVAKOVICH, Secretary   



MEMORANDUM 
 

To: Port Commission 

 

From:  Tim Arntzen, Executive Director 

 

Date: 04/24/2018 

 

Re: Review of West Richland Directives 

 

Occasionally representatives from West Richland (Mayor, Council, staff) have asked what the port intends to do 

with the racetrack site.  My response is that the Port of Kennewick’s economic development efforts over the last 

decade, whether directed toward the racetrack site, or to other sites within the city, have been substantial.  

Therefore, in order to respond to the question related to the port’s past contributions (and potential future 

contributions), I suggest the port assemble a brief list of accomplishments that could be used to compose an article 

for the upcoming spring port newsletter.  This article might be a good refresher of our past accomplishments and 

future vision.  Related to future port actions in West Richland, commission directives (contained in the master 

plan and comp scheme, the “Guiding Documents”) instruct me to: 

 

1.  Continue to solve “entitlement” issues at the racetrack site (i.e. UGA, inundation clause, utility right-of- way 

and others which prevent full and efficient site development); and 

 

2.  Remain focused on appropriate racetrack site development as guided by the master plan and the 

comprehensive scheme.  This focus is essentially broken down into two components: 

 

a. A longer-term development strategy (i.e. 4 - 7 years).  This strategy would assume: (a) the construction 

(by the municipality) of municipal services to the site; and (b) the construction of backbone infrastructure, 

including utilities and streets on site (constructed by the port).  Development of the site would be with an 

eye toward creating parcels ranging in size from five to 10 acres, which the port could sell for uses 

consistent with the master plan (i.e. light industrial and wine related).  The establishment of the four to 

seven year time frame by the commission was with recognition of the complex and expensive task of 

developing a 90+ acre parcel.  Additionally, the port commission realized that the development timeframe 

would be viewed in light of then-current economic and other conditions, including but not limited to, 

availability of budgeted port funding for on-site infrastructure and progress by the state toward funding 

and construction of the Red Mountain Interchange.  The commission also likely recognized the challenge 

of balancing racetrack development simultaneously with Vista Field development. 

 

b. As noted in the master plan and comp scheme, a shorter-term development strategy (i.e. 1 - 3 years) could 

be pursued while conditions precedent to the longer term strategy are maturing.  A shorter-term strategy 

was identified as “banking” budgeted funding over a multiple year period to partner with the city to finance 

construction of city utilities to the property line (1/3 port, 2/3 City).   

 

In conclusion, the strategy related to West Richland should follow that identified in the “Guiding Documents”.  

These strategies were good when formulated and are good guidance now as well.  Staff should resist the urge to 

“renegotiate” development strategies.  One possible deviation from the “Guiding Documents” could be an update 

of the uses contemplated in the master plan as time for possible on-site development nears. 

 

I hope I accurately understand the directives related to West Richland.  Please offer any comments or clarification 

you may have. 

 

 


